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Plaintift (“Plaintiff”), individually and on behalf of all others similarly

situated, by and through his attorneys, alleges the following upon information and belief, except as
to those allegations concerning Plaintiff, which are alleged upon personal knowledge. Plaintiff’s
information and belief is based upon, among other things, his counsel’s investigation, which
includes without limitation: (a) review and analysis of regulatory filings made by Synopsys, Inc.
(“Synopsys” or the “Company”) with the United States (“U.S.”) Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”); (b) review and analysis of press releases and media reports issued by and
disseminated by Synopsys; and (c) review of other publicly available information, concerning
Synopsys.
NATURE OF THE ACTION AND OVERVIEW

1. This is a class action on behalf of persons and entities that purchased or otherwise
acquired Synopsys securities between December 4, 2024%nd September 9, 2025, inclusive (the
“Class Period”). Plaintiff pursues claims against the Defendants under the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”).

2. Synopsys providgs=el€ctronic design automation software products used to design
and test integrated circuits{_[t-operates in two segments, Design Automation and Design IP. The
Design 1P segmerit provides pre-designed, silicon-proven components that semiconductor
companies use\té build chips and System-on-Chips (SoCs) more quickly and cost-effectively. The
Design IP segment includes, a wide range of products and services, including Interface IP, which
provides pre-designed modules for a variety of widely used protocols. The Company’s Design IP
segment has been the fastest-growing part of Synopsys, growing from 25% of the Company’s
revenue in fiscal year 2022, to 31% in fiscal year 2024.

3. On September 9, 2025, after market hours, Synopsys released its third quarter 2025
financial results, revealing the Company’s “IP business underperformed expectations.” The
Company reported quarterly revenue of $1.740 billion, missing its prior guidance for the quarter of
between $1.755 billion and $1.785 billion, and reported net income of $242.5 million, or $1.50 per
diluted share, compared to $425.9 million, or $2.73 per diluted share, for the third quarter of fiscal

year 2024. Moreover, the Company reported its Design IP segment, which accounts for
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approximately 25% of revenue, came in at $426.6 million, a 7.7% decline year-over-year. Finally,
management provided guidance which implied that Design IP revenues will decline by at least 5%
on a full-year basis in fiscal 2025.

4. In an earnings call held the same day, Sassine Ghazi (“Ghazi”), the Company’s Chief
Executive Office, President, and Director, revealed “results were primarily impacted by
underperformance in the IP business™ driven by factors including “challenges at a major foundry
customer” and ““certain road map and resource decisions that did not yield their intendedwesults.”
As a result, the Company is “actively pivoting [its] IP resources and road map’,dnd the Company
is “taking a more cautious view of Q4.” Ghazi further explained, regardifig ifs pivot, that “there's
more and more customization in particular, for interface IP, and tHese customization are moving
from an off-the-shelf to a more subsystem delivery which is ittakes longer, it takes more resources.”
Ghazi concluded that, as a result “our ability to changeé-the,business model or the need to change
the business model is an ongoing dialogue with enr ¢ustomers.”

5. On this news, Synopsys’s\steeKprice fell $216.59, or 35.8%, to close at $387.78 per
share on September 10, 2025, onp-tmuSually heavy trading volume.

6. Throughout(the Class Period, Defendants made materially false and/or misleading
statements, as well"as _fai€d to disclose material adverse facts about the Company’s business,
operations, andgirospects. Specifically, Defendants failed to disclose to investors: (1) the extent of
the Company’s exposure to “challenges at a major foundry customer;” (2) the extent to which the
Company’s increased focus on artificial intelligence based customers was deteriorating the
economics of its Design IP business; (3) as a result, “certain road map and resource decisions” were
unlikely to “yield their intended results;” (4) as a result, the Company had been reviewing its “ability
to change the business model or the need to change the business model;” and (5) that, as a result of
the foregoing, Defendants’ positive statements about the Company’s business, operations, and
prospects were materially misleading and/or lacked a reasonable basis.

7. As a result of Defendants’ wrongful acts and omissions, and the precipitous decline
in the market value of the Company’s securities, Plaintiff and other Class members have suffered

significant losses and damages.
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JURISDICTION AND VENUE

8. The claims asserted herein arise under Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Exchange Act

(15 U.S.C. §§ 78j(b) and 78t(a)) and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder by the SEC (17 C.F.R. §

240.10b-5).

0. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C.
§ 1331 and Section 27 of the Exchange Act (15 U.S.C. § 78aa).

10. Venue is proper in this Judicial District pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b)_and Section

27 of the Exchange Act (15 U.S.C. § 78aa(c)). Substantial acts in furtherance of the alleged fraud
or the effects of the fraud have occurred in this Judicial District. Many of‘flic ‘acts charged herein,
including the dissemination of materially false and/or misleading, information, occurred in
substantial part in this Judicial District. In addition, the Company’s principal executive offices are
located in this District.

11. In connection with the acts, transagtions, and conduct alleged herein, Defendants
directly and indirectly used the means and-sStrumentalities of interstate commerce, including the
United States mail, interstate telephohe communications, and the facilities of a national securities
exchange.

PARTIES

12. Plaintift , as set forth in the accompanying certification,

incorp@rated*by reference herein, purchased Synopsys securities during the Class Period, and
suffered damages as a result of the federal securities law violations and false and/or misleading
statements and/or material omissions alleged herein.

13. Defendant Synopsys is incorporated under the laws of Delaware with its principal
executive offices located in Sunnyvale, California. Synopsys’s common stock trades on the
NASDAQ exchange under the symbol “SNPS.”

14. Defendant Sassine Ghazi (“Ghazi”’) was the Company’s Chief Executive Officer
(“CEQ”) at all relevant times.

15. Defendant Shelagh Glaser (“Glaser”) was the Company’s Chief Financial Officer

(“CFQO”) at all relevant times.
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16. Defendants Ghazi and Glaser (collectively the “Individual Defendants™), because of
their positions with the Company, possessed the power and authority to control the contents of the
Company’s reports to the SEC, press releases and presentations to securities analysts, money and
portfolio managers and institutional investors, i.e., the market. The Individual Defendants were
provided with copies of the Company’s reports and press releases alleged herein to be misleading
prior to, or shortly after, their issuance and had the ability and opportunity to prevent their issuance
or cause them to be corrected. Because of their positions and access to material non-public
information available to them, the Individual Defendants knew that the advessg, faets specified
herein had not been disclosed to, and were being concealed from, the public, and that the positive
representations which were being made were then materially false and/or misleading. The
Individual Defendants are liable for the false statements pleaded herein.

SUBSTANTIVE ALLEGATIONS

Background

17. Synopsys provides electreni¢,deSign automation software products used to design
and test integrated circuits. It operat€s in two segments, Design Automation and Design IP. The
Design IP segment proyides pre-designed, silicon-proven components that semiconductor
companies use to bdild ehips and System-on-Chips (SoCs) more quickly and cost-effectively. The
Design IP segménttincludes, a wide range of products and services, including Interface IP, which
providés pte*designed modules for a variety of widely used protocols. The Company’s Design IP
segment has been the fastest-growing part of Synopsys, growing from 25% of the Company’s
revenue in fiscal year 2022, to 31% in fiscal year 2024.

Materially False and Misleading

Statements Issued During the Class Period

18. The Class Period begins on December 4, 2024.! On that day, Synopsys issued a press

release announcing the financial results of its fourth fiscal quarter and fiscal year ended October 31,

! Unless otherwise stated, all emphasis in bold and italics hereinafter is added.
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2024. The press release touted the Company’s financial results and announced the Company’s full
fiscal year 2025 financial targets, as follows in relevant part:

* Record quarterly revenue of $1.636 billion, up approximately 11% year over year
(YoY), exceeding the mid-point of guidance.

* Quarterly GAAP earnings per diluted share (EPS) of $1.79; non-GAAP EPS of
$3.40, up approximately 13% YoY, exceeding guidance.

* Achieved record full-year 2024 revenue of $6.127 billion, up approximately 15%
YoY, while improving non-GAAP operating margin and delivering approximately
25% non-GAAP EPS growth.

* Expecting to deliver double digit revenue growth in 2025 while preparing for Ansys
acquisition close, which remains on-track for the first half of 2025.

%k * *

First Quarter and Full Fiscal Year 2025 Financial Targets
(in millions except per share aimounts)

Range forThree Monthis Ending Range for Fiscal Year Ending
January 31,2025 October 31, 2023
Low High Low High
Revenue G\ 1835 $ 1465 $ 6745 $ 6805
GAAP Expenses § N1142 $ 1162 $ 4926 $ 4983
Non-GAAP Expenses £ NS o4 $ 955 $  4.045 $ 4,085
Non-GAAP Interest and Other Income (Expense), net $ 20 $ 22 $ 94 $ 98
Non-GAAP Tax Rate \A™ 16% 16% 16% 16%
Outstanding Shares (fully diluted) 156 158 157 159
GAAP EPS S« 0 s 1.81 $ 195 $ 1042 $ 1063
Non-GAAP EPS S 2.77 $ 282 $ 1488 $ 1496
Operating Cash Flow \ ) ~ $1.800
Free Cash Flow2) ~ §1.600
Capital Expenditures o ~$170
% * *
Three Months Ended Three Months Ended Twelve Months Ended Twelve Months Ended
October 31, 2024 October 31, 2023 October 31,2024 October 31, 2023
Revenye'by sbment - -
- DesignAutomation 3 1.1182 § 9537 $ 42211 $ 3,7753
( “oofotal 68.3% 65.0% 68.9% 71.0%
-Design IP 3 5178 $ 5137 $ 1.906.3 $ 1.542.7
% of Total 31.7% 35.0% 31.1% 29.0%
Adjusted operating income
by segment
- Design Automation $ 4133 $ 3111 $ 1.631.9 $ 14139
- Design IP $ 1899 $ 2364 $ 730.2 $ 514.1
Adjusted operating margin
by segment
- Design Automation 37.0% 32.6% 38.7% 37.5%
- Design IP 36.7% 46.0% 383% 33.3%

21. On December 19, 2024, the Company submitted its annual report for the fiscal year
ended October 31, 2024 on a Form 10-K filed with the SEC (the “FY24 10-K”). The FY24 10-K
affirmed the previously reported financial results. The FY24 10-K further reported the Company’s
purported growth strategy and the factors impacting the Company’s Design IP segment revenue.

Specifically, the FY24 10-K stated as follows, in relevant part:
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Our growth strategy is based on maintaining and building on our leadership in our
Design Automation products, expanding and proliferating our Design IP offerings
and continuing to expand our product portfolio and our total addressable market. Our
revenue growth from period to period is expected to vary based on the mix of our
time based and upfront products. Based on our leading technologies, customer
relationships, business model, diligent expense management, and acquisition
strategy, we believe that we will continue to execute our strategies successfully.

%k * *

Design IP Segment

* Design IP includes our interface, foundation, security, and embedded processor IR,
IP subsystems, and IP implementation services. These arrangements generally hdave
two performance obligations which consist of transferring of the licenséd IR and
providing related support, which includes rights to technical supporteand\software
updates that are provided over the support term and are transferredto, the' customer
over time. Revenue allocated to the IP licenses is recognized at a point'in time upon
the later of the delivery date or the beginning of the licenSe period, and revenue
allocated to support is recognized over the support term, Royalties are recognized as
revenue in the quarter in which the applicable customer sells its products that
incorporate our IP. Payments for IP contracts are(geherally received upon delivery
of the IP. Revenue related to the customization ©ficertain IP is recognized over time,
generally using costs incurred or hours expended to measure progress.

Our customer arrangements can invelye multiple products and various license rights,
and our customers negotiate with,us\over many aspects of these arrangements. For
example, they generally requeSt a broader portfolio of solutions, support and services
and seek more favorable term§ such as expanded license usage, future purchase rights
and other unique rights atan overall lower total cost. No single factor typically drives
our customers’ buying.decisions, and we compete on all fronts to serve customers in
highly competitive markets. Customers generally negotiate the total value of the
arrangement rathesthan just unit pricing or volumes.

Year Ended October 31, § Change % Change % Change % Change
2024 2023 2022 2024 vs. 2023 2023 vs. 2022
{dollars in millions)

-’

Design

Automation $ 42211 % 37753 § 33002 % 445 8 12% $ 4751 14 %
Design IP 1,906.3 1,542.7 1,315.5 363.6 24 % 2272 17 %
Total $ 61274 % 53180 % 461567 3 809.4 15% $ 7023 15 %

Our revenues are subject to fluctuations, primarily due to customer requirements
including the timing and value of contract renewals. For example, we experience
fluctuations in our revenues due to factors such as the timing of IP product sales,
Flexible Spending Account (FSA) drawdowns, royalties, and hardware products
sales. As revenues from IP products sales and hardware products sales are recognized
upfront, customer demand and timing requirements for such IP products and
hardware products could result in increased variability of our total revenues.

22. The FY24 10-K further purported to warn of certain risks which “could” or “may”

impact the Company, including as follows, in relevant part:

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
6




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

We may not be successful in our Al initiatives, which could adversely affect our
business, operating results or financial condition.

We have incorporated, and are continuing to develop and deploy, Al into our
products and the operations of our business. While these Al initiatives can present
significant benefits, the Al landscape is rapidly evolving and may create risks and
challenges for our business. If we fail to develop and timely offer products with Al
features, if such products fail to meet our customers’ demands, if these products fail
to operate as expected, or if our competitors incorporate Al into their products more
quickly or more successfully than we do, we may experience brand or reputational
harm and lose our competitive position, our products may become obsolete, and our
business, operating results or financial condition could be adversely affected.

* * *

Our hardware products, which primarily consist of prototyping aund ‘eéntulation
systems, subject us to distinct risks.

The growth in sales of our hardware products subjects us togfisks,,including, but not
limited to:

Increased dependence on a sole supplier for certain hardware components, which
may reduce our control over product quality afid,pricing and may lead to delays in
production and delivery of our hardware preducts, should our supplier fail to deliver
sufficient quantities of acceptable compenentsin a timely fashion;

*Increasingly variable revenue ‘and\ 1eSs predictable revenue forecasts, due to
fluctuations in hardware rey€nue,Wwhich is recognized upfront upon shipment, as
opposed to most sales of-seftware products for which revenue is recognized over
time;

*Potential reductiens.in overall margins, as the gross margin for our hardware
products, is£ypically lower than those of our software products;

*Longeisales cycles, which create risks of insufficient, excess or obsolete inventory
and\¥ariations in inventory valuation, which can adversely affect our business,
operating results and financial condition;

%k %k *

Our operating results may fluctuate in the future, which may adversely affect our
stock price.

Our operating results are subject to quarterly and annual fluctuations, which may
adversely affect our stock price. Our historical results should not be viewed as
indicative of our future performance due to these periodic fluctuations.

Many factors have in the past and may in the future cause our backlog, revenue or
earnings to fluctuate, including, among other things:

% % %
*Changes in the mix of our products sold, as increased sales of our products with

lower gross margins, such as our hardware products, may reduce our overall
margins

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
7




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

23. On February 26, 2025, Synopsys issued a press release announcing the financial
results of its first fiscal quarter ended January 31, 2025. The press release touted the Company’s
financial results and announced the Company’s full fiscal year 2025 financial targets, as follows in
relevant part:

Results Summary

* Quarterly revenue of $1.455 billion, exceeding midpoint of guidance.

* Quarterly GAAP earnings per diluted share of $1.89; non-GAAP earnings per
diluted share of $3.03, exceeding guidance.

* Reaffirming full-year 2025 guidance.

%k * *

Second Quarter and Full Fiscal Year 2025 Financial Targets
(in millions except per share amouhts)

Range for Three Months Range for Fiscal Year
Ending Ending
April 30,2025 October 31,2025
Tow Hhigh Low THhgh
Revenue AN\AN " FassEs 3 1615 $6.745 $6.805
GAAP Expenses $ 1,191 $ 1211 $4972 $5,029
Non-GAAP Expenses «\ ) $ 985 $ 995 $4.045 $4.085
Non-GAAP Interest and Other Income (Expense), net $ 24 $ 26 s 94 $ 98
Non-GAAP Tax Rate L, X N 16% 16% 16% 16%
Outstanding Shares (fully diluted) 156 158 157 159
GAAP EPS N $ 221 $ 233 $10.09 $1031
Non-GAAP EPS $ 337 $ 342 §$14.88 $14.96
Operating Cash Flow - \.J ~$1.800
Free Cash Flow(2) ~$1.600
Capital Expenditures o ) ~$170
¢ % %
Three Months Ended Three Months Ended
January 31, 2025 January 31, 2024

Reyeifue by segment

vDesigh Automation $ 1,020.2 g 985.3

N %of Total 70.1% 65.2%

- Design [P £ 4351 g 5257

2% of Total 29.9% 34 8%

Adjusted operating income by segment

- Design Automation $ 404.7 $ 359.5

- Design [P 5 1265 $ 2457
Adjusted operating margin by segment

- Design Automation 39.7% 36.5%
- Design IP 29.1% 46.7%

24. On February 26, 2025, the Company submitted its quarterly report for the period
ended January 31, 2025 on a Form 10-Q filed with the SEC (the “1Q25 10-Q”). The 1Q25 10-Q
affirmed the previously reported financial results. The 1Q25 10-Q further stated the following
regarding purported growth strategy and the factors impacting the Company’s Design IP segment
revenue. Specifically, the 1Q25 10-Q stated as follows, in relevant part:

Our growth strategy is based on maintaining and building on our leadership in our
Design Automation products, expanding and proliferating our Design IP offerings
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and continuing to expand our product portfolio and our total addressable market. Our
revenue growth from period to period is expected to vary based on the mix of our
time based and upfront products. Based on our leading technologies, customer
relationships, business model, diligent expense management, and acquisition
strategy, we believe that we will continue to execute our strategies successfully.

%k * *

Design IP Segment

*Design IP includes our interface, foundation, security, and embedded processor IP,
IP subsystems, and IP implementation services. These arrangements generally have
two performance obligations which consist of transferring of the licensed IP, and
providing related support, which includes rights to technical support and seftwére
updates that are provided over the support term and are transferred to the ‘eustomer
over time. Revenue allocated to the IP licenses is recognized at a pointin\time upon
the later of the delivery date or the beginning of the license period, ‘and revenue
allocated to support is recognized over the support term. Royalties atesecognized as
revenue in the quarter in which the applicable customers¢lls, its products that
incorporate our IP. Payments for IP contracts are generally\ec€ived upon delivery
of the IP. Revenue related to the customization of certain IP is recognized over time,
generally using costs incurred or hours expended t0 meastire progress.

Our customer arrangements can involve muitiplé products and various license rights,
and our customers negotiate with us gvetnmany aspects of these arrangements. For
example, they generally request a broader portfolio of solutions, support and services
and seek more favorable terms sugh.as €xpanded license usage, future purchase rights
and other unique rights at an @Veralhlower total cost. No single factor typically drives
our customers’ buying deeisiohs, and we compete on all fronts to serve customers in
highly competitive markets) Customers generally negotiate the total value of the
arrangement rather@han just unit pricing or volumes.

Total Reverlue

Year Ended October 31, % Change % Change % Change % Change

2024 2023 2022 2024 vs. 2023 2023 vs. 2022

{dollars in millions)

Design

Automation $ 42211 $ 37753 $ 33002 $ 4458 12% $ 4751 14 %
Design IP 1,906.3 1,542.7 1,315.5 363.6 24 % 227.2 17 %
Total $ 61274 $ 53180 $ 46157 $ 8094 15% $ 7023 15 %

25. The 1Q25 10-Q further purported to warn of certain risks which “could” or

impact the Company, including as follows, in relevant part:

We may not be successful in our Al initiatives, which could adversely affect our
business, operating results or financial condition.

We have incorporated, and are continuing to develop and deploy, Al into our
products and the operations of our business. While these Al initiatives can present
significant benefits, the Al landscape is rapidly evolving and may create risks and
challenges for our business. If we fail to develop and timely offer products with Al

3

[3

may

2
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features, if such products fail to meet our customers’ demands, if these products fail
to operate as expected, or if our competitors incorporate Al into their products more
quickly or more successfully than we do, we may experience brand or reputational
harm and lose our competitive position, our products may become obsolete, and our
business, operating results or financial condition could be adversely affected.

* * *

Our hardware products, which primarily consist of prototyping and emulation
systems, subject us to distinct risks.

The growth in sales of our hardware products subjects us to risks, including, but not
limited to:

*Increased dependence on a sole supplier for certain hardware components, which
may reduce our control over product quality and pricing and may lead, ta‘\delays in
production and delivery of our hardware products, should our supplict. fail*to deliver
sufficient quantities of acceptable components in a timely fashion;

Increasingly variable revenue and less predictable revenue forecasts, due to
fluctuations in hardware revenue, which is recognizéd upfront upon shipment, as
opposed to most sales of software products for which\wévenue is recognized over
time;

*Potential reductions in overall marginsy as“the gross margin for our hardware
products, is typically lower than thase€ of pur software products;

*Longer sales cycles, which efeatesisks of insufficient, excess or obsolete inventory
and variations in inventery Waluation, which can adversely affect our business,
operating results and financial condition;

3k %k *

Our operating results may fluctuate in the future, which may adversely affect our
stoclk pxice.

Our Operating results are subject to quarterly and annual fluctuations, which may
ddversely affect our stock price. Our historical results should not be viewed as
indicative of our future performance due to these periodic fluctuations.

Many factors have in the past and may in the future cause our backlog, revenue or
earnings to fluctuate, including, among other things:

% % %
*Changes in the mix of our products sold, as increased sales of our products with

lower gross margins, such as our hardware products, may reduce our overall
margins

26. On May 28, 2025, Synopsys issued a press release announcing the financial results

of its second fiscal quarter ended April 30, 2025. The press release touted the Company’s financial
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results and announced the Company’s full fiscal year 2025 financial targets, as follows in relevant
part:

Results Summary

* Quarterly revenue of $1.604 billion, exceeding midpoint of guidance.

* Quarterly GAAP earnings per diluted share of $2.24; non-GAAP earnings per
diluted share of $3.67, exceeding guidance.

» Reaffirming full-year 2025 revenue guidance, and non-GAAP operating margin
guidance.

Third Quarter and Full Fiscal Year 2025 Financial Targets

(in millions except per share amounts)

Range fox(Three Months
Ending Range for Fiscal Year
July 3132005 Ending October 31, 2025
Low High Low High
Revenue Y $ 1,785 $ 6.745 $6.805
GAAP Expenses $71.273 $ 1,293 $ 5011 $ 5.068
Non-GAAP Experses o L\ ¥ 1055 $ 1,065 $ 4045 $4.085
Non-GAAP Interest and Other Income (Expense), net $ 9 $ 11 $ 118 £ 122
Non-GAAP Tax Rate < Y 16% 16% 16% 16%
Outstanding Shares (fully diluted) 156 158 156 158
GAAP EPS - N\ $ 263 $ 274 $ 10.14 $10.34
Non-GAAP EPS $ 3.82 $ 3.87 $ 1511 $15.19
Operating Cash Flow -\ - ~$ 1,500
Free Cash Flow(2) ~$ 1300
Capital Expenditures LR )7 ~$ 170
* * *
Three Months Ended Three Months Ended Six Months Ended Six Months Ended
April 30, 2025 April 30,2024 April 30, 2025 April 30,2024
Revenue byse At
- Desigfl Autémation $ 1.1223 $ 1.054.9 $ 2,1425 $ 2,040.3
% of ol 70.0% 72.5% 70.0% 68.8%
- Désign IP $ 482.0 $ 399.8 $ 917.1 $ 925.4
ﬁj’?bmi 30.0% 275% 30.0% 312%
Agftisted operating income by
segment
- Design Automation $ 4588 $ 4182 $ 863.4 $ 7777
- Design IP $ 150.5 $ 1248 $ 277.1 $ 370.5
Adjusted operating margin by
segment
- Design Automation 40.9% 39.6% 40.3% 38.1%
- Design IP 312% 312% 30.2% 40.0%

27. On May 28, 2025, the Company submitted its quarterly report for the period ended
April 30, 2025 on a Form 10-Q filed with the SEC (the “2Q25 10-Q”). The 2Q25 10-Q affirmed the
previously reported financial results. The 2Q25 10-Q further reported the Company’s purported
growth strategy and the factors impacting the Company’s Design IP segment revenue. Specifically,

the 2Q25 10-Q stated as follows, in relevant part:
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Our growth strategy is based on maintaining and building on our leadership in our
Design Automation products, expanding and proliferating our Design IP offerings
and continuing to expand our product portfolio and our total addressable market. Our
revenue growth from period to period is expected to vary based on the mix of our
time based and upfront products. Based on our leading technologies, customer
relationships, business model, diligent expense management, and acquisition
strategy, we believe that we will continue to execute our strategies successfully.

%k * *

Design IP Segment

* Design IP includes our interface, foundation, security, and embedded processor IR,
IP subsystems, and IP implementation services. These arrangements generally hdave
two performance obligations which consist of transferring of the licenséd IR and
providing related support, which includes rights to technical supporteand\software
updates that are provided over the support term and are transferredto, the' customer
over time. Revenue allocated to the IP licenses is recognized at a point'in time upon
the later of the delivery date or the beginning of the licenSe period, and revenue
allocated to support is recognized over the support term, Royalties are recognized as
revenue in the quarter in which the applicable customer sells its products that
incorporate our IP. Payments for IP contracts are(generally received upon delivery
of the IP. Revenue related to the customization ©ficertain IP is recognized over time,
generally using costs incurred or hours expended to measure progress.

Our customer arrangements can invelye multiple products and various license rights,
and our customers negotiate with,us\over many aspects of these arrangements. For
example, they generally requeSt a broader portfolio of solutions, support and services
and seek more favorable term§ such as expanded license usage, future purchase rights
and other unique rights atanoverall lower total cost. No single factor typically drives
our customers’ buying.decisions, and we compete on all fronts to serve customers in
highly competitive markets. Customers generally negotiate the total value of the
arrangement rathethan just unit pricing or volumes.

April 30,
2025 2024 $ Change % Change
{dollars in millions)
Three months ended
Design Automation $ 11223 § 10549 $ 67.4 6%
Design IP 4820 399.8 822 21 %
Total $ 16043 $ 14547 § 1496 10 %
Six months ended
Design Automation $ 21425 % 20403 % 1022 5%
Design IP 917.1 925 4 (8.3) (1)%
Total $ 30596 $ 29657 § 939 3%

28. The 2Q25 10-Q further purported to warn of certain risks which “could” or “may”

impact the Company, including as follows, in relevant part:

We may not be successful in our Al initiatives, which could adversely affect our
business, operating results or financial condition.

We have incorporated, and are continuing to develop and deploy, Al into our
products and the operations of our business. While these Al initiatives can present
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significant benefits, the Al landscape is rapidly evolving and may create risks and
challenges for our business. If we fail to develop and timely offer products with Al
features, if such products fail to meet our customers’ demands, if these products fail
to operate as expected, or if our competitors incorporate Al into their products more
quickly or more successfully than we do, we may experience brand or reputational
harm and lose our competitive position, our products may become obsolete, and our
business, operating results or financial condition could be adversely affected.

* * *

Our hardware products, which primarily consist of prototyping and emulation
systems, subject us to distinct risks.

The growth in sales of our hardware products subjects us to risks, including, But\iot
limited to:

*Increased dependence on a sole supplier for certain hardware componeénts, which
may reduce our control over product quality and pricing and may Igad to delays in
production and delivery of our hardware products, should ouf supplier fail to deliver
sufficient quantities of acceptable components in a timely fashion;

Increasingly variable revenue and less predictable\r€venue forecasts, due to
fluctuations in hardware revenue, which is re€ognized upfront upon shipment, as
opposed to most sales of software products_fot which revenue is recognized over
time;

*Potential reductions in overall\maxgins, as the gross margin for our hardware
products, is typically lower than these of our software products;

*Longer sales cycles, which greate risks of insufficient, excess or obsolete inventory
and variations in inventory valuation, which can adversely affect our business,
operating result§ andufinancial condition;

%k %k *

Qunroperating results may fluctuate in the future, which may adversely affect our
stock'price.

Our operating results are subject to quarterly and annual fluctuations, which may
adversely affect our stock price. Our historical results should not be viewed as
indicative of our future performance due to these periodic fluctuations.

Many factors have in the past and may in the future cause our backlog, revenue or
earnings to fluctuate, including, among other things:

% % %
*Changes in the mix of our products sold, as increased sales of our products with

lower gross margins, such as our hardware products, may reduce our overall
margins

29. The above statements identified in §918-28 were materially false and/or misleading,

and failed to disclose material adverse facts about the Company’s business, operations, and
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prospects. Specifically, Defendants failed to disclose to investors: (1) the extent of the Company’s
exposure to “challenges at a major foundry customer;” (2) the extent to which the Company’s
increased focus on artificial intelligence based customers was deteriorating the economics of its
Design IP business; (3) as a result, “certain road map and resource decisions” were unlikely to “yield
their intended results;” (4) as a result, the Company had been reviewing its “ability to change the
business model or the need to change the business model;” and (5) that, as a result of the foregoing,
Defendants’ positive statements about the Company’s business, operations, and prospects were
materially misleading and/or lacked a reasonable basis.

Disclosures at the End of the Class Period

30. On September 9, 2025, after market hours, Synopsys released its third quarter 2025
financial results, revealing the Company’s “IP business_underperformed expectations.” The
Company reported quarterly revenue of $1.740 billign,{missing its prior guidance for the quarter of
between $1.755 billion and $1.785 billion, andteported net income of $242.5 million, or $1.50 per
diluted share, compared to $425.9 milliog,.0x $2.73 per diluted share, for the third quarter of fiscal
year 2024. Moreover, the Compafiy reported its Design IP segment, which accounts for
approximately 25% of revénue, came in at $426.6 million, a 7.7% decline year-over-year. Finally,
management providéd guidance which implied that Design IP revenues will decline by at least 5%
on a full-year basSis'in fiscal 2025. Specifically, the press release stated as follows, in relevant part:

Synopsys Posts Financial Results for Third Quarter Fiscal Year 2025

Results Summary

* Quarterly revenue of $1.740 billion, up 14% year-over-year (YoY)

* Quarterly GAAP earnings per diluted share of $1.50; non-GAAP earnings per
diluted share of $3.39

* Results reflect the closing of Ansys acquisition on July 17, 2025

» Expecting full-year 2025 revenue between $7.03 and $7.06 billion dollars as
Synopsys transformation continues

SUNNYVALE, Calif. — Sep. 9, 2025 — Synopsys, Inc. (Nasdaq: SNPS) today
reported results for its third quarter of fiscal year 2025. Revenue for the third quarter
of fiscal year 2025 was $1.740 billion, compared to $1.526 billion for the third
quarter of fiscal year 2024.
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“Q3 was a transformational quarter. Against a challenging geo-political backdrop,
we closed the Ansys acquisition — expanding our portfolio, customer base and
opportunity. Now more than ever, Synopsys is the mission-critical partner
technology R&D needs to design and deliver Al-powered products,” said Sassine
Ghazi, president and CEO of Synopsys. “While I’'m proud of how our team
navigated external challenges in the quarter, our IP business underperformed
expectations. We are taking action to enhance our competitive advantage and drive
resilient, long-term growth.”

“In Q3, strength in Design Automation was offset by weakness in Design IP,” said
Shelagh Glaser, CFO of Synopsys. “We are taking a more conservative view of Q4,
while guiding another consecutive year of profitable growth.”

GAAP Results

On a U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) basis, net income for
the third quarter of fiscal year 2025 was $242.5 million, or $1.50 pet. diluted share,

compared to $425.9 million, or $2.73 per diluted share, for the third quarter of fiscal
year 2024.

Fourth Quarter and Full Fiscal Year2025 Financial Targets

(in millions excepl'pér Share amounts)

Range for Three Months Range for Fiscal Year
Ending Ending
October 31,2025 October 31,2025
Low High Low High
Revenue PR\ $ 2230 $ 2260 $7.030  $7.060
GAAP Expenses $ 2,115 $ 2139  $6079  $6.103
Non-GAAP Expenses N\ J $ 1440 $ 1450  $4430  $4.440
Non-GAAP Interest and Other Incosfie (Expense, net 5 (179) § (181) % (92) % (94
Non-GAAP Tax Rate o ) 16% 16% 16% 16%
Outstanding Shares (fully dilfited) 187 188 165 166
GAAP EPS ~ X » $ (027) $ (016) $ 503 § 516
Non-GAAP EPS $ 276 $ 280 $1276  $1280
Operating CashFlow N/ ~$1,130
Free Cash F16w(l) ~$950
CapitalExpenditures ~$180
* * *
Business Segment Reporting
(in millions)
Three Months Ended Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended Nine Months Ended
July 31, 2025 July 31,2024 July 31, 2025 July 31,2024
Revenue by segment
- Design Automation $ 13121 $ 1.062.6 3 34546 $ 3,103.0
% of Total 75.4% 69.6% 72.0% 69.1%
- Design IP $ 427.6 $ 463.1 $ 13447 $ 1.388.5
% of Total 24.6% 30.4% 28.0% 30.9%
Adjusted operating income by segment
- Design Automation b4 5838 $ 440.9 $ 14472 $ 1,218.6
- Design IP $ 86.0 $ 169.7 $ 363.1 $ 5402
Adjusted operating margin by segment
- Design Automation 44.5% 41.5% 41.9% 39.3%
- Design IP 20.1% 36.7% 27.0% 38.9%
CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
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31. In an earnings call held the same day (the “3Q25 Earnings Call”), Ghazi revealed
“results were primarily impacted by underperformance in the IP business” driven by factors
including “challenges at a major foundry customer” and “certain road map and resource decisions
that did not yield their intended results.” As a result, the Company is “actively pivoting [its] IP
resources and road map” and the Company is “taking a more cautious view of Q4.” Specifically,
Ghazi offered prepared remarks during 3Q25 Earnings Call, wherein he stated as follows, in relevant
part:

Good afternoon. Q3 was a transformational milestone quarter for Synopsys, Againist

an unprecedented and challenging geopolitical backdrop, we closed theh Ansys
acquisition, expanding our revenue, our customer base and” oux “long-term
opportunity. We delivered third quarter revenue of $1.74 billion and non-GAAP EPS
of $3.39.

Our results were primarily impacted by underperfofinance in the IP business as
we had the expectation of deals that did not materialize, driven largely by the
Sfollowing 3 factors: one, new export restrictions,disrupted design starts in China,
compounding China weakness; two, challenges at a major foundry customer are
also having a sizable impact on the years And finally, we made certain road map
and resource decisions that did not yield\their intended results.

We are actively pivoting ourdP reseurces and road map towards the highest growth
opportunities, which I'll disciiss in more detail. Looking ahead, we believe we have
derisked our forecast, knowing that transformation takes time and the external
headwinds I cited will.continue. We are taking a more cautious view of Q4 while
still expecting t0 deliver a record revenue year. Let me provide more color on our Q3
execution afd thesdctions we're taking to accelerate our strategy before Shelagh
covers the\financials in more detail.

32, As the 3Q25 Earnings Call moved into its question and answer session, Ghazi further
explained; regarding its pivot, that “there's more and more customization in particular, for interface
IP;"and these customization are moving from an off-the-shelf to a more subsystem delivery which
is it takes longer, it takes more resources.” Ghazi concluded that, as a result “our ability to change
the business model or the need to change the business model is an ongoing dialogue with our
customers.” Specifically, Ghazi stated as follows, in relevant part:

So today, if you look at the Synopsys portfolio for IP, we serve multiple markets,

HPC, Edge Al, automotive, mobile, consumer, and we serve that portfolio for

multiple foundries, not only one foundry. And as I mentioned to Ruben when he

asked the question, we have and our customer has expectations, and we have the

responsibility given that portfolio breadth that we have to serve the multiple

foundries for those multiple markets in both interface IP and foundation IP. And
there's more and more customization in particular, for interface IP.
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And these customization are moving from an off-the-shelf to a more subsystem
delivery which is it takes longer, it takes more resources and our ability to change
the business model or the need to change the business model is an ongoing
dialogue with our customers because as they're expecting us to do more work than
just off-the-shelf IP, there's an opportunity for higher monetization. And that's what
we're pivoting our resources, our methodology, our approach from an architecture

point of view to serve that market for the interface IP that I talked about.

33.

As the 3Q25 Earnings Call continued, Ghazi clarified “the pivot from our customers

in terms of expectation from off-the-shelf IP to customization is not new. But what is new is the

magnitude in which the number of customers are expecting for us to deliver [customization]” and

“[g]liven the demand for that customization, we need to ensure that we are captuciig the right value

for the impact we're delivering.” Ghazi concluded “we are absolutely asg€§sing*as this market is

pivoting, and we're pivoting with it, what is the business model to faaintain the right profitability

in order to capture the opportunity and growth that we_have,” Specifically, Ghazi stated as

follows, in relevant part:

The pivot from our customers in terms$\Of expectation from off-the-shelf IP to
customization is not new. But what is néw is the magnitude in which the number
of customers are expecting for us\to'deliver instead of discrete IP to deliver a number
of IP that we glue them together with some customization logic and test logic, et
cetera, and validate and ensut€ that it hits the mark with the right quality. Each one
of those engagements historically had 2 components. It had an NRE component and
a use fee componeit,

Given the démandAfor that customization, we need to ensure that we are capturing
the right valuefor the impact we're delivering. Therefore, it's not something that we
are, Jowart to say, happy to just say it's an NRE plus a use fee, there has to be another
element in order for us to put priority for these opportunities and deliver to. And
that's*what the discussions we're having with a number of these customers. And as
you look ahead, if you fast forward 2-plus years from now, will we start delivering
from an discrete IP to a subsystem to possibly chiplet? What level of chiplet? Is it a
soft chiplet? Is it a hardened chiplet, meaning GDS2? Is it all the way down to a
known good die with a partner?

These are all questions and expectations our customers are asking us, given we are
the leader in that space, and we have a number of engagements with a few strategic
partners. We are absolutely assessing as this market is pivoting, and we're pivoting
with it, what is the business model to maintain the right profitability in order to
capture the opportunity and growth that we have.

34, On this news, Synopsys’s stock price fell $216.59, or 35.8%, to close at $387.78 per

share on September 10, 2025, on unusually heavy trading volume.
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CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

35. Plaintiff brings this action as a class action pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil
Procedure 23(a) and (b)(3) on behalf of a class, consisting of all persons and entities that purchased
or otherwise acquired Synopsys securities between December 4, 2024 and September 9, 2025,
inclusive, and who were damaged thereby (the “Class”). Excluded from the Class are Defendants,
the officers and directors of the Company, at all relevant times, members of their immediate families
and their legal representatives, heirs, successors, or assigns, and any entity in which _Defendants
have or had a controlling interest.

36. The members of the Class are so numerous that joindér ‘of* all members is
impracticable. Throughout the Class Period, Synopsys’s shares actively traded on the NASDAQ.
While the exact number of Class members is unknown to_Rlaintiff at this time and can only be
ascertained through appropriate discovery, Plaintiff Belicyes that there are at least hundreds or
thousands of members in the proposed Class.Millions of Synopsys shares were traded publicly
during the Class Period on the NASDAQ. Reeord owners and other members of the Class may be
identified from records maintaiped, By Synopsys or its transfer agent and may be notified of the
pendency of this action by fail, using the form of notice similar to that customarily used in securities
class actions.

37. Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the claims of the members of the Class as all members
of the Clasg are similarly affected by Defendants’ wrongful conduct in violation of federal law that
1§ complained of herein.

38. Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the members of the Class
and has retained counsel competent and experienced in class and securities litigation.

39. Common questions of law and fact exist as to all members of the Class and
predominate over any questions solely affecting individual members of the Class. Among the
questions of law and fact common to the Class are:

(a) whether the federal securities laws were violated by Defendants’ acts as

alleged herein,;
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(b) whether statements made by Defendants to the investing public during the
Class Period omitted and/or misrepresented material facts about the business, operations, and
prospects of Synopsys; and

(©) to what extent the members of the Class have sustained damages and the
proper measure of damages.

40. A class action is superior to all other available methods for the fair and efficient
adjudication of this controversy since joinder of all members is impracticable. Furthermoge, as the
damages suffered by individual Class members may be relatively small, the experise and burden of
individual litigation makes it impossible for members of the Class to individtially redress the wrongs
done to them. There will be no difficulty in the management of thig"action as a class action.

UNDISCLOSED ADVERSE KACTS

41. The market for Synopsys’s securities, wias, open, well-developed and efficient at all
relevant times. As a result of these materially false\and/or misleading statements, and/or failures to
disclose, Synopsys’s securities traded at artificially inflated prices during the Class Period. Plaintiff
and other members of the Class pur¢h@ased or otherwise acquired Synopsys’s securities relying upon
the integrity of the market price of the Company’s securities and market information relating to
Synopsys, and have’been ddmaged thereby.

42. During the Class Period, Defendants materially misled the investing public, thereby
inflating the price of Synopsys’s securities, by publicly issuing false and/or misleading statements
and/er omitting to disclose material facts necessary to make Defendants’ statements, as set forth
herein, not false and/or misleading. The statements and omissions were materially false and/or
misleading because they failed to disclose material adverse information and/or misrepresented the
truth about Synopsys’s business, operations, and prospects as alleged herein.

43. At all relevant times, the material misrepresentations and omissions particularized in
this Complaint directly or proximately caused or were a substantial contributing cause of the
damages sustained by Plaintiff and other members of the Class. As described herein, during the
Class Period, Defendants made or caused to be made a series of materially false and/or misleading

statements about Synopsys’s financial well-being and prospects. These material misstatements
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and/or omissions had the cause and effect of creating in the market an unrealistically positive
assessment of the Company and its financial well-being and prospects, thus causing the Company’s
securities to be overvalued and artificially inflated at all relevant times. Defendants’ materially false
and/or misleading statements during the Class Period resulted in Plaintiff and other members of the
Class purchasing the Company’s securities at artificially inflated prices, thus causing the damages
complained of herein when the truth was revealed.

LOSS CAUSATION

44. Defendants’ wrongful conduct, as alleged herein, directly and proximately caused
the economic loss suffered by Plaintiff and the Class.

45. During the Class Period, Plaintiff and the Class pur¢hased Synopsys’s securities at
artificially inflated prices and were damaged thereby. Th& pfice of the Company’s securities
significantly declined when the misrepresentations, made\to the market, and/or the information
alleged herein to have been concealed from the market, and/or the effects thereof, were revealed,

causing investors’ losses.

SCIENTER ALLEGATIONS

46. As alleged hexein, Defendants acted with scienter since Defendants knew that the
public documents @nd_‘statements issued or disseminated in the name of the Company were
materially false#and/or misleading; knew that such statements or documents would be issued or
disseminated*to the investing public; and knowingly and substantially participated or acquiesced in
the iSsuance or dissemination of such statements or documents as primary violations of the federal
securities laws. As set forth elsewhere herein in detail, the Individual Defendants, by virtue of their
receipt of information reflecting the true facts regarding Synopsys, their control over, and/or receipt
and/or modification of Synopsys’s allegedly materially misleading misstatements and/or their
associations with the Company which made them privy to confidential proprietary information

concerning Synopsys, participated in the fraudulent scheme alleged herein.
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APPLICABILITY OF PRESUMPTION OF RELIANCE
(FRAUD-ON-THE-MARKET DOCTRINE)

47. The market for Synopsys’s securities was open, well-developed and efficient at all
relevant times. As a result of the materially false and/or misleading statements and/or failures to
disclose, Synopsys’s securities traded at artificially inflated prices during the Class Period. On July
30, 2025, the Company’s share price closed at a Class Period high of $645.35 per share. Plaintiff
and other members of the Class purchased or otherwise acquired the Company’s securitiés relying
upon the integrity of the market price of Synopsys’s securities and market information relating to
Synopsys, and have been damaged thereby.

48. During the Class Period, the artificial inflation of Syhopsys’s shares was caused by
the material misrepresentations and/or omissions particulafized in this Complaint causing the
damages sustained by Plaintiff and other members ofithe Class. As described herein, during the
Class Period, Defendants made or caused to beanade*a series of materially false and/or misleading
statements about Synopsys’s business, prespects, and operations. These material misstatements
and/or omissions created an uprealistically positive assessment of Synopsys and its business,
operations, and prospects{thus causing the price of the Company’s securities to be artificially
inflated at all relevant tim€s, and when disclosed, negatively affected the value of the Company
shares. Defendants® materially false and/or misleading statements during the Class Period resulted
in Plaintiffland other members of the Class purchasing the Company’s securities at such artificially
inflated prices, and each of them has been damaged as a result.

49. At all relevant times, the market for Synopsys’s securities was an efficient market
for the following reasons, among others:

(a) Synopsys shares met the requirements for listing, and was listed and actively
traded on the NASDAAQ), a highly efficient and automated market;

(b) As a regulated issuer, Synopsys filed periodic public reports with the SEC
and/or the NASDAQ);

(©) Synopsys regularly communicated with public investors via established

market communication mechanisms, including through regular dissemination of press releases on
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the national circuits of major newswire services and through other wide-ranging public disclosures,
such as communications with the financial press and other similar reporting services; and/or

(d) Synopsys was followed by securities analysts employed by brokerage firms
who wrote reports about the Company, and these reports were distributed to the sales force and
certain customers of their respective brokerage firms. Each of these reports was publicly available
and entered the public marketplace.

50. As a result of the foregoing, the market for Synopsys’s securities promptlyzdigested
current information regarding Synopsys from all publicly available sources and réflected such
information in Synopsys’s share price. Under these circumstances, all pgrc¢hasers of Synopsys’s
securities during the Class Period suffered similar injury through”their, purchase of Synopsys’s
securities at artificially inflated prices and a presumption of réliance applies.

51. A Class-wide presumption of reliance {syalso appropriate in this action under the
Supreme Court’s holding in Affiliated Ute Citizens\of*Utah v. United States, 406 U.S. 128 (1972),
because the Class’s claims are, in large partygrounded on Defendants’ material misstatements and/or
omissions. Because this actiem ifivolves Defendants’ failure to disclose material adverse
information regarding the €ompany’s business operations and financial prospects—information that
Defendants were obligatedto disclose—positive proof of reliance is not a prerequisite to recovery.
All that is pecesSary is that the facts withheld be material in the sense that a reasonable investor
might have considered them important in making investment decisions. Given the importance of
the €lass Period material misstatements and omissions set forth above, that requirement is satisfied

here.

NO SAFE HARBOR

52. The statutory safe harbor provided for forward-looking statements under certain
circumstances does not apply to any of the allegedly false statements pleaded in this Complaint. The
statements alleged to be false and misleading herein all relate to then-existing facts and conditions.
In addition, to the extent certain of the statements alleged to be false may be characterized as forward
looking, they were not identified as “forward-looking statements” when made and there were no

meaningful cautionary statements identifying important factors that could cause actual results to
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differ materially from those in the purportedly forward-looking statements. In the alternative, to the
extent that the statutory safe harbor is determined to apply to any forward-looking statements
pleaded herein, Defendants are liable for those false forward-looking statements because at the time
each of those forward-looking statements was made, the speaker had actual knowledge that the
forward-looking statement was materially false or misleading, and/or the forward-looking statement
was authorized or approved by an executive officer of Synopsys who knew that the statement was

false when made.

FIRST CLAIM

Violation of Section 10(b) of The Exchange Act and
Rule 10b-5 Promulgated Thereunder

Against All Defendants
53. Plaintiff repeats and re-alleges each and'eyexy allegation contained above as if fully
set forth herein.
54. During the Class Period, Defendants carried out a plan, scheme and course of conduct

which was intended to and, thpewghiout the Class Period, did: (i) deceive the investing public,
including Plaintiff and other.Class members, as alleged herein; and (ii) cause Plaintiff and other
members of the Class topufchase Synopsys’s securities at artificially inflated prices. In furtherance
of this unlawful’scheme, plan and course of conduct, Defendants, and each defendant, took the
actionsset forth herein.

55. Defendants (1) employed devices, schemes, and artifices to defraud; (i1) made untrue
statements of material fact and/or omitted to state material facts necessary to make the statements
not misleading; and (ii1) engaged in acts, practices, and a course of business which operated as a
fraud and deceit upon the purchasers of the Company’s securities in an effort to maintain artificially
high market prices for Synopsys’s securities in violation of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and
Rule 10b-5. All Defendants are sued either as primary participants in the wrongful and illegal
conduct charged herein or as controlling persons as alleged below.

56. Defendants, individually and in concert, directly and indirectly, by the use, means or

instrumentalities of interstate commerce and/or of the mails, engaged and participated in a
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continuous course of conduct to conceal adverse material information about Synopsys’s financial
well-being and prospects, as specified herein.

57. Defendants employed devices, schemes and artifices to defraud, while in possession
of material adverse non-public information and engaged in acts, practices, and a course of conduct
as alleged herein in an effort to assure investors of Synopsys’s value and performance and continued
substantial growth, which included the making of, or the participation in the making of, untrue
statements of material facts and/or omitting to state material facts necessary in order to ‘make the
statements made about Synopsys and its business operations and future prospects in,light of the
circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, as set forth midre\particularly herein,
and engaged in transactions, practices and a course of business which Operated as a fraud and deceit
upon the purchasers of the Company’s securities during the Glass)Period.

58. Each of the Individual Defendants’ prirffary\liability and controlling person liability
arises from the following facts: (i) the Individual\Defendants were high-level executives and/or
directors at the Company during the Class,Reriod and members of the Company’s management team
or had control thereof; (i1) each ofth€se defendants, by virtue of their responsibilities and activities
as a senior officer and/or director of the Company, was privy to and participated in the creation,
development and r¢porting” of the Company’s internal budgets, plans, projections and/or reports;
(ii1) each ofrthese defendants enjoyed significant personal contact and familiarity with the other
defendantsjand was advised of, and had access to, other members of the Company’s management
teamy internal reports and other data and information about the Company’s finances, operations, and
sales at all relevant times; and (iv) each of these defendants was aware of the Company’s
dissemination of information to the investing public which they knew and/or recklessly disregarded
was materially false and misleading.

59. Defendants had actual knowledge of the misrepresentations and/or omissions of
material facts set forth herein, or acted with reckless disregard for the truth in that they failed to
ascertain and to disclose such facts, even though such facts were available to them. Such defendants’
material misrepresentations and/or omissions were done knowingly or recklessly and for the purpose

and effect of concealing Synopsys’s financial well-being and prospects from the investing public
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and supporting the artificially inflated price of its securities. As demonstrated by Defendants’
overstatements and/or misstatements of the Company’s business, operations, financial well-being,
and prospects throughout the Class Period, Defendants, if they did not have actual knowledge of the
misrepresentations and/or omissions alleged, were reckless in failing to obtain such knowledge by
deliberately refraining from taking those steps necessary to discover whether those statements were
false or misleading.

60. As aresult of the dissemination of the materially false and/or misleading infermation
and/or failure to disclose material facts, as set forth above, the market price of Synopsys’s securities
was artificially inflated during the Class Period. In ignorance of the fact ghat market prices of the
Company’s securities were artificially inflated, and relying directly 0z ipdirectly on the false and
misleading statements made by Defendants, or upon the_ifitegrity of the market in which the
securities trades, and/or in the absence of material adycgse information that was known to or
recklessly disregarded by Defendants, but not.diSelosed in public statements by Defendants during
the Class Period, Plaintiff and the other membeérs of the Class acquired Synopsys’s securities during
the Class Period at artificially highvptices and were damaged thereby.

61. At the time ©fsaid misrepresentations and/or omissions, Plaintiff and other members
of the Class were ighorant-6f their falsity, and believed them to be true. Had Plaintiff and the other
members of-the/Class and the marketplace known the truth regarding the problems that Synopsys
was experigncing, which were not disclosed by Defendants, Plaintiff and other members of the Class
wauld not have purchased or otherwise acquired their Synopsys securities, or, if they had acquired
such securities during the Class Period, they would not have done so at the artificially inflated prices
which they paid.

62. By virtue of the foregoing, Defendants violated Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act
and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder.

63. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ wrongful conduct, Plaintiff and the
other members of the Class suffered damages in connection with their respective purchases and

sales of the Company’s securities during the Class Period.

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
25




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

SECOND CLAIM

Violation of Section 20(a) of The Exchange Act

Against the Individual Defendants

64. Plaintiff repeats and re-alleges each and every allegation contained above as if fully
set forth herein.

65. Individual Defendants acted as controlling persons of Synopsys within the meaning
of Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act as alleged herein. By virtue of their high-level positions and
their ownership and contractual rights, participation in, and/or awareness of'\theé\ Company’s
operations and intimate knowledge of the false financial statements filed b¥ the, €Company with the
SEC and disseminated to the investing public, Individual Defendantg’had the power to influence and
control and did influence and control, directly or indirectly, the decision-making of the Company,
including the content and dissemination of the various Statements which Plaintiff contends are false
and misleading. Individual Defendants were previded*with or had unlimited access to copies of the
Company’s reports, press releases, publcAilings, and other statements alleged by Plaintiff to be
misleading prior to and/or shortly=aft€r these statements were issued and had the ability to prevent
the issuance of the statemefits-or cause the statements to be corrected.

66. In pdrticular, Individual Defendants had direct and supervisory involvement in the
day-to-day eperdtions of the Company and, therefore, had the power to control or influence the
particular transactions giving rise to the securities violations as alleged herein, and exercised the
same.

67. As set forth above, Synopsys and Individual Defendants each violated Section 10(b)
and Rule 10b-5 by their acts and omissions as alleged in this Complaint. By virtue of their position
as controlling persons, Individual Defendants are liable pursuant to Section 20(a) of the Exchange
Act. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ wrongful conduct, Plaintiff and other members
of the Class suffered damages in connection with their purchases of the Company’s securities during
the Class Period.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for relief and judgment, as follows:
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(a) Determining that this action is a proper class action under Rule 23 of the Federal
Rules of Civil Procedure;

(b) Awarding compensatory damages in favor of Plaintiff and the other Class members
against all defendants, jointly and severally, for all damages sustained as a result of Defendants’
wrongdoing, in an amount to be proven at trial, including interest thereon;

(©) Awarding Plaintiff and the Class their reasonable costs and expenses incurred in this
action, including counsel fees and expert fees; and

(d) Such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and propet

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

Plaintiff hereby demands a trial by jury.

DATED: , 2025 GLANCY PRONGAY & MURRAY LLP
By:
Robert V. Prongay
Charl¢s H."Linehan
Rayithta Rajesh
1925 Century Park East, Suite 2100
LEos Angeles, California 90067
Telephone: (310)201-9150
Facsimile: (310)201-9160
Email: clinehan@glancylaw.com

prajesh@glancylaw.com

LAW OFFICES OF HOWARD G. SMITH
Howard G. Smith

3070 Bristol Pike, Suite 112

Bensalem PA 19020

Telephone: (215) 638-4847

Facsimile: (215) 638-4867

Counsel for Plaintiff
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